
2020 Annual Report & Financial Statements | Nation Media Group PLC | 79

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Financial Statements

Media of Africa for Africa
Zulu traditional, hand crafted

beaded bracelets



2020 Annual Report & Financial Statements | Nation Media Group PLC80 |

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Company at the end of the financial year and of their financial performance 
for the year then ended. The directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group and Company keep proper accounting records 
that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions of the Group and Company; disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the Group and Company; and that enable them to prepare financial statements of the Group and Company 
that comply with prescribed financial reporting standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.     

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. They also accept 
responsibility for: 

i.	 Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as they determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;

ii.	 Selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently; and

iii.	Making judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Having made an assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the directors are not aware of 
any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern.

The directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them of their responsibility.

Approved by the board of directors on 28 April 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Dr. W D Kiboro						      R Tobiko

Chairman						      Group Finance Director

Statement Of Directors’ Responsibilities
for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Report on the audit of the financial statements   

Our opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Nation Media Group PLC (the Company) and its subsidiaries 
(together, the Group) set out on pages 84 to 127, which comprise 
the Group and Company statements of financial position at 31 
December 2020 and the consolidated and company statements 
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of 
Nation Media Group PLC give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group and the Company at 31 December 2020 
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including International Independence Standards) (the IESBA 
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in Kenya. We have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA 
Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.	

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Nation Media  
Group PLC the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Credit risk and estimation of expected credit losses on 
trade receivables  
The group is exposed to credit risk arising, mainly, from credit 
sales of goods to customers. The credit risk was heightened 
in the year by the increased emerging competition and 
challenging economic environment due to the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.

The recognition of credit loss allowances on financial 
assets, as required by IFRS 9, involves the use of significant 
judgements and estimates by management. This makes this 
an area of focus.

Management have applied significant judgements and 
estimates in the following areas as described in note 3 of the 
financial statements:

i.	 The determination and application of IFRS 9 risk parameters 
i.e. probably of default (PD), loss given at default (LGD) and 
definition of default for trade receivables; and

ii.	Determination of expected timing for settlement of 
government trading debt.

The disclosures on the application of IFRS 9 in the 
determination of expected credit losses are in note 4(b) of the 
financial statements.

•	 We assessed the Group’s accounting policies for compliance with 
the principles of IFRS 9.

•	 We assessed and tested the key modelling assumptions for 
reasonableness, including the expected timing of the settlement 
of receivables from the government.

•	 We validated the key inputs into the expected credit loss 
model against source documents/reports and checked for 
the mathematical accuracy of the model. We also challenged 
management’s definition of default.  

•	 We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the financial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. PwC Tower, Waiyaki Way/Chiromo Road, Westlands     
P O Box 43963 – 00100 Nairobi, Kenya     
T: +254 (20)285 5000 F: +254 (20)285 5001    www.pwc.com/ke

Partners: E Kerich  B Kimacia  M Mugasa  A Murage  F Muriu  P Ngahu  R Njoroge  S O Norbert’s  B Okundi  K Saiti
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Other information 

The other information comprises the company information, the 
corporate governance statement, the chairman’s statement, the 
directors’ profiles, the report of the directors, the statement of 
directors responsibilities, the non-auditable part of the directors’ 
remuneration report, the notice of the annual general meeting, 
and the report of principal shareholders which we obtained 
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the rest of the other 
information in the Annual Report which are expected to be made 
available to us after that date, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors 
are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and 
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we 
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information we have received prior to the date of this auditor’s 
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the rest of the other information in the Annual 
Report and we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2015, and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors. 

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Nation Media  
Group PLC the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
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are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the Group’s 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the directors, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the Group’s financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act, 
2015

Report of the directors 

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report on 
pages 66 to 68 is consistent with the financial statements. 

Directors’ remuneration report 

In our opinion the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration 
report on pages 74 to 75 has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2015. 

CPA Bernice Kimacia, Practising certificate No. 1457
Engagement partner responsible for the audit 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Certified Public Accountants 
Nairobi 

 28 April 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Nation Media  
Group PLC the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
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Statements of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 December

Group Company

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Revenue 5 6,812.8 9,050.9 5,016.1 6,922.3

Cost of sales (1,148.0) (1,814.1) (825.9) (1,342.0)

Gross profit 5,664.8 7,236.8 4,190.2 5,580.3

Distribution costs (279.0) (318.2) (203.0) (225.6)

Administrative expenses (3,824.6) (4,274.0) (2,740.7) (3,069.1)

Net impairment losses on financial assets (124.3) 202.1 (124.2) 198.8

Other expenses (1,530.3) (1,735.5) (1,180.3) (1,376.1)

Operating (loss)/profit 6 (93.4) 1,111.2 (58.0) 1,108.3

Finance income 8 203.2 197.6 170.6 164.8

Finance costs 8 (42.0) (84.4) (36.4) (70.3)

Share of profit after income tax of associate 17 52.1 72.0 - -

Profit before income tax 119.9 1,296.4 76.2 1,202.8

Income tax expense 9 (72.0) (440.4) (39.5) (403.7)

Profit for the year 47.9 856.0 36.7 799.1

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences 69.2 22.1 - -

Other comprehensive income from associate 17 18.4   (15.5) - -

87.6 6.6 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 135.5 862.6 36.7 799.1

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the parent 48.1 849.3 - -

Non-controlling interest (0.2) 6.7 - -

47.9 856.0 - -

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

    Owners of the parent 129.9 855.4 - -

    Non-controlling interest 5.6 7.2 - -

135.5 862.6 - -

Basic earnings per share (Shs) 10 0.2 4.5 - -

Diluted earnings per share (Shs) 10 0.2 4.1 - -
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Statements of Financial Position 
at 31 December

Group Company

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Attributable to the Company’s equity holders

Share capital 11 518.5 471.4 518.5 471.4

Other reserves 12 (57.7) (134.9) 96.9 99.5

Retained earnings 7,402.7 7,397.1 5,542.4 5,550.2

7,863.5 7,733.6 6,157.8 6,121.1

Non-controlling interest 69.5 63.9 - -

Total equity 7,933.0 7,797.5 6,157.8 6,121.1

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax 13 29.1 27.3 - -

Lease liabilities 16 448.4 692.2 357.8 571.3

Post-employment benefit obligation 26 - 6.0 - 6.0

477.5 725.5 357.8 577.3

Total equity and non-current liabilities 8,410.5 8,523.0 6,515.6 6,698.4

Non-current assets

Land and buildings 14(a) 599.0 595.2 408.0 426.2

Plant and equipment 14(b) 1,372.2 1,710.0 1,054.2 1,349.6

Right of use asset 16 644.6 871.6 503.2 702.2

Intangible assets 15 292.9 191.6 266.6 167.7

Investment in associate 17 1,485.4 1,422.6 94.6 94.6

Investment in subsidiaries 18 - - 702.8 702.8

Deferred income tax 13 366.9 282.6 290.8 206.0

Post-employment benefit obligation 26 27.5 - 27.5 -

Other assets 19 74.7 111.1 74.7 111.1

    4,863.2 5,184.7 3,422.4 3,760.2

Current assets

Inventories 20 521.4 656.7 431.8 508.9

Receivables and prepayments 21 3,504.5 3,623.0 2,799.5 2,874.1

Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,344.2 1,039.0 1,063.2 817.3

Short-term investments 23 1,530.0 1,520.0 1,338.3 1,362.0

Current income tax   57.3 73.3 26.9 40.5

    6,957.4 6,912.0 5,659.7 5,602.8

Current liabilities

Payables and accrued expenses 24 2,720.6 2,906.0 1,933.7 2,046.0

Provisions 25 558.3 537.9 536.5 515.1

Lease liabilities 16 131.2 129.8 96.3 103.5

  3,410.1 3,573.7 2,566.5 2,664.6

Net current assets 3,547.3 3,338.3 3,093.2 2,938.2

Total assets less current liabilities   8,410.5 8,523.0 6,515.6 6,698.4

The financial statements on pages 84 to 127 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28th April 2021 
and signed on its behalf by:

Dr. W D Kiboro                                                                                                      	 R Tobiko 
Chairman                                                                          	       			   Group Finance Director  
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Notes
Share 

capital
Other 

reserves
Retained 
Earnings

Proposed 
dividends Total

Non-
controlling 

interest
Total 

equity

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year 471.4 (136.4) 6,826.0 659.9 7,820.9 56.7 7,877.6

Profit for the year - - 849.3 - 849.3 6.7 856.0

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Currency translation differences - 21.6 - - 21.6 0.5 22.1

Transfer of excess depreciation - (6.5) 6.5 - - -

Deferred income tax on transfer - 1.9 (1.9) - - -

Share of comprehensive income in 
associate 17 - (15.5) - - (15.5) - (15.5)

Total other comprehensive income - 1.5 4.6 - 6.1 0.5 6.6

Total comprehensive income for the year - 1.5 853.9 - 855.4 7.2 862.6

Transactions with owners 

Dividends:

- Final for 2018 - - (659.9) (659.9) - (659.9)

- Interim for 2019 paid 27 - - (282.8) - (282.8) - (282.2)

Total transactions with owners - - (282.8) (659.9) (942.7) - (942.7)

At end of year 471.4 (134.9) 7,397.1 - 7,733.6 63.9 7,797.5

Group Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 December
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 December (continued)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Notes
Share 

capital
Other 

reserves
Retained 
Earnings Total

Non- 
controlling 

interest
Total 

equity

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 471.4 (134.9) 7,397.1 7,733.6 63.9 7,797.5

Profit for the year - - 48.1 48.1 (0.2) 47.9

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Currency translation differences - 63.4 - 63.4 5.8 69.2

Transfer of excess depreciation - (6.5)                6.5 - - -

Deferred income tax on transfer -               1.9 (1.9) - - -

Share of comprehensive income in associate 17 - 18.4 - 18.4 - 18.4

Total other comprehensive income - 77.2 4.6 81.8 5.8 87.6

Total comprehensive income for the year - 77.2 52.7 129.9 5.6 135.5

Transactions with owners 

Bonus share issue 11 47.1 - (47.1) - - -

At end of year 518.5 (57.7) 7,402.7 7,863.5 69.5 7,933.0
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 December

Share 
 capital

Other 
reserves

Retained 
earnings

Proposed 
dividends

Total 
equity

Notes Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year 471.4 102.1 5,031.3 659.9 6,264.7

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year - - 799.1 - 799.1

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Transfer of excess depreciation - (3.7) 3.7 - -

Deferred income tax on transfer - 1.1 (1.1) - -

Total other comprehensive income - (2.6) 2.6 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - (2.6) 801.7 - 799.1

Transactions with owners

Dividends:

- final for 2018 paid 27 - - - (659.9) (659.9)

- interim for 2019 paid 27 - - (282.8) - (282.8)

Total transactions with owners - - (282.8) (659.9) (942.7)

At end of year 471.4 99.5 5,550.2           - 6,121.1

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 471.4 99.5 5,550.2           - 6,121.1

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year - - 36.7 - 36.7

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Transfer of excess depreciation - (3.7) 3.7 - -

Deferred income tax on transfer - 1.1 (1.1) - -

Total other comprehensive income - (2.6) 2.6 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - (2.6) 39.3 - 36.7

Transactions with owners

Bonus share issue 11 47.1 - (47.1) - -

At end of year 518.5 96.9 5,542.4 - 6,157.8
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Group Company

Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations 30 598.1 1,967.8 439.1 1,881.8

Income tax paid (138.0) (519.4) (110.5) (471.2)

Net cash generated from operating activities 460.1 1,448.4 328.6 1,410.6

Investing activities

Interest received 8 203.2 197.6 170.6 164.8

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (78.0) (161.6) (31.6) (93.2)

Purchase of intangible assets 15 (155.5) (21.9) (151.9) (20.4)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 19.8 6.0 16.5 4.6

Dividends received from associate 17 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7

Dividend received from subsidiary - - - 18.7

Long-term deposit 19 36.4 63.1 36.4 63.1

Short-term investments 23 (10.0) (231.8) 23.7 (230.4)

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities          23.6        (140.9)           71.4      (85.1)

Financing activities

Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company - (942.7) - (942.7)

Payment of lease liabilities 16 (204.4) (213.2) (154.1) (157.0)

Net cash used in financing activities (204.4) (1,155.9) (154.1) (1,099.7)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 279.3 151.6 245.9 225.8

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

At start of year 1,039.0           867.1 817.3 591.5

Increase in cash and cash equivalents              279.3     151.6 245.9 225.8

Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 25.9 20.3 - -

At end of year 22 1,344.2 1,039.0 1,063.2 817.3

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 December
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1. General information
	
Nation Media Group PLC (the “Company”) is incorporated in 
Kenya under the Kenya Companies Act as a public limited 
liability company, and is domiciled in Kenya. The address of its 
registered office is:
	
Nation Media Group PLC
Nation Centre
Kimathi Street 
P O Box 49010 - 00100
Nairobi  

The Company’s shares are listed on the Nairobi, Kampala, Dar 
es Salaam and Kigali Stock Exchanges.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance 
sheet is represented by the statement of financial position and 
the profit and loss account by the statement of comprehensive 
income, in these financial statements.  
	
2. Summary of significant accounting policies
	
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
the Company and consolidated financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.
	
(a) Basis of preparation
		
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern 
basis and in compliance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). The financial statements are presented in 
Kenyan Shillings (Shs m), rounded to the nearest one tenth of a 
million. The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis 
except where otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

Under the historical cost basis, assets are recorded at the 
amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of 
the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their 
acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds 
received in exchange for the obligation or, in some cases, at the 
amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to 
satisfy the liability in the normal course of business.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It 
also requires directors to exercise judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions 
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are 
disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The group applied the following standards and interpretations 
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 
1 January 2020:
a.	 Presentation of Financial statements and Accounting 

policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors – 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

These amendments use a consistent definition of materiality 
through IFRSs and the conceptual framework for Financial 
Reporting, clarify the explanation of the definition of material 
and incorporates some of the guidance in IAS 1 about material 
information. According to this amendment, “Information is 
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably 
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of 
those financial statements, which provide financial information 
about a specific reporting entity.”

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements 
of the Company.

b.	 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 	
16)

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have 
been granted to lessees. Such concessions might take a variety 
of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease 
payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to 
IFRS 16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat 
qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if 
there were not lease modifications. 

The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from 
assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a 
lease modification.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect of operating 
leases in force at 1 June 2020 have been recognized in 
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 16. 

The practical expedient only applies to lessees’ rent concessions 
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
and only if all of the following conditions are met:

iii.	The change in lease payments results in revised consideration 
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, 
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the 
change;

iv.	 Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due 
on or before 30 June 2021; and

Notes to the financial statements
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2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

b. 	Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 	
	 16) (continued)
 
v.	 There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions 

of the lease.

The group did not receive any rent concessions on existing/
ongoing lease agreements in the year. However, the group 
renegotiated some leases which resulted in lease modifications 
as disclosed in note 16.

Due to changes announced on Tax Amendment Act 2020, 
Value Added Tax was reduced from 16% to 14% for the period 
25th April 2020 to 31 December 2020. This tax change had no 
impact on the group’s IFRS 16 numbers as the tax amounts are 
excluded from the IFRS 16 model.

(ii)  New and amended standards in issue but not yet effective 	
as at 31st December 2020

a) Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant & Equipment – 
Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item 
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises 
the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.

b) Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as 
Current and Non-Current

 The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the 
requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the 
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an 
uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due 
or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current.

c) Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous contracts – cost of 
fulfilling a contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract 
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs 
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs 
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to 
fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the 
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment 
used in fulfilling the contract).

These standards have not been early adopted in preparing 
the financial statements. None of these is expected to have a 
significant effect on financial statements of the Group.
 
 

(b) Consolidation

i. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over 
which the group has control. The group controls an entity when 
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from 
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to 
the group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to 
account for business combinations. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values 
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity 
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred 
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from 
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their fair values 
at the acquisition date. 
	
The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair 
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition 
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest 
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition 
date through profit or loss. Any contingent consideration to 
be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the 
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the 
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or 
liability is recognized in accordance with IFRS 9 either in profit or 
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and 
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any 
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date 
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the 
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as 
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling 
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less 
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired 
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized 
directly in the income statement.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair 
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 
is recognized in profit or loss.
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(b) Consolidation (continued)

i. Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains 
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. 
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction 
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 
the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
impairment in the separate financial statements. Cost is 
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from 
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes 
direct attributable costs of investment.

a) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without 
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in 
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions that is, 
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The 
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the 
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the 
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to 
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

b) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest 
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when 
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in 
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the 
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest 
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, 
any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive 
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the 
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. 
This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

ii. Associates 

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant 
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding 
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments 
in associates are accounted for by the equity method of 
accounting.  Under the equity method, the investments are 
initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased 
or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or 
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.  The Group’s 
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on 
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but 
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of 
the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive 
income is reclassified to profit or loss as appropriate. The 

Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses 
is recognized in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognized in 
other comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment.  When the Group’s 
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the 
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred 
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of 
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is 
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is 
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of 
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount 
of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the 
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/ (loss) of an associate’ in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream 
transactions between the Group and its associate are 
recognized in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent 
of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealized 
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence 
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies 
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising from investments in associates 
are recognized in profit or loss. Associates are stated at cost in 
the separate financial statements of the Company.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recorded at cost. Freehold land and buildings are subsequently 
shown at market value, based on valuations that are conducted 
at least every five years by external independent valuers, less 
subsequent depreciation. All other property, plant and equipment 
is stated at historical cost less depreciation.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in 
the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial 
period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are 
credited to a revaluation reserve. Decreases that offset previous 
increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation 
reserve; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each 
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued 
carrying amount of the asset (the depreciation charged to profit 
or loss) and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is 
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.   

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is 
calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost 
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(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

of each asset, or the revalued amounts, to their residual values 
over their estimated useful life. The annual rates used for this 
purpose are as follows:

Buildings	 40 years
Plant and equipment	 5 – 15 years 
Computers and software	 3 – 5 years
Motor Vehicles	 3 – 5 years
Leasehold land  	 over the remaining lease term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate at each statement of financial position 
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to 
its estimated recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Property, plant 
and equipment are periodically reviewed for impairment. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
are determined by comparing proceeds with their carrying 
amounts and are taken into account in determining the profit. On 
disposal of revalued assets, amounts in the revaluation reserve 
relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.
                                                                                                                                    
(d) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with 
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (CODM). The executive management team, which is 
responsible for strategic decision, allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the CODM. All transactions between business 
segments are conducted on an arm length basis. Income 
and expenses associated with each segment as included in 
determining business segment performance.

(e) Revenue and income recognition

The Group recognizes revenue for direct sales of goods and 
rendering of services. Revenue is recognized as and when 
the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring 
control of a product or service to a customer. The amount of 
revenue recognized is the amount the Group expects to receive 
in accordance with the terms of the contract, and excludes 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Value 
Added Tax (VAT).

Circulation revenue from the sale of newspapers is recognized 
on delivery of the newspapers to appointed distributors based 
on approved allocation list, net of returns of unsold newspapers. 
Advertising revenue is recognized on publication of the related 
advertisement on print, online or airing. Contract printing 
revenue recognition is based on the performance of the service 
agreed with the customers. E-paper revenue is recognized on 
delivery of electronic version of the newspaper to the customer.

The Group recognizes revenue at a point in time or over time 
depending on the nature of goods and services and mode of 
fulfilling performance obligations.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest 
method.  

Dividends are recognized as income in the period the right to 
receive payment is established.

(f) Inventories
	
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average principle. 
Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and 
selling expenses. Goods in transit are stated at cost. Specific 
provisions are made for obsolete, slow moving and defective 
inventories.
	
(g) Financial instruments
	
(i) Initial recognition

Financial instruments are recognized when, and only when, 
the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets are recognized initially using 
the trade date accounting which is the date the Group commits 
itself to the purchase or sale.

(ii) Classification

The Group classifies its financial instruments into the following 
categories:
	
a) Financial assets that are held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows, and for which the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding, are classified and measured at amortized cost.

b)	 Financial assets that are held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets, and for which the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are classified 
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income.

c)	 All other financial assets are classified and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss.

d)	 Financial liabilities that are held for trading, financial 
guarantee contracts, or commitments to provide a loan at 
a below-market interest rate are classified and measured at 
fair value through profit or loss. The Company may also, on 
initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability 
as at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency.

e)	 All other financial liabilities are classified and measured at 
amortized cost.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)            

(g) Financial instruments (continued)  

(ii) Classification (continued)

Financial instruments held during the year were classified as 
follows:

• 	 Demand and term deposits with banking institutions, trade 
and other receivables, and short term investments were 
classified as at amortized cost.

Trade and other liabilities were classified as at amortized cost.

(iii) Initial measurement

On initial recognition:
• 	 Financial assets or financial liabilities classified as at fair 

value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
• 	 Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price.
• 	 All other categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 

are measured at the fair value plus or minus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of the instrument.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition 
are measured either at amortized cost, at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, or at fair value through profit or 
loss according to their classification. 

Exchange gains and losses on monetary items, interest income 
and dividend income are recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined as set out in Note 4(e). Amortized 
cost is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is 
measured on initial recognition minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective 
interest method of any difference between the initial amount 
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for 
any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit 
losses on debt instruments that are measured at amortized 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. The 
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime 
expected credit losses for trade receivables and for financial 
instruments (Note 4(b)) for which: (a) the credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition; or (b) there is 
observable evidence of impairment (a credit-impaired financial 
asset). All changes in the loss allowance are recognized in profit 
or loss as impairment gains or losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent the expected credit 
losses that result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument. Expected credit losses 
are measured in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount determined by evaluating a range of possible 
outcomes, the time value of money, and reasonable and 

supportable information that is available without undue cost or 
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions 
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

(vi) Presentation

All financial assets are classified as non-current except those 
that are held for trading, those with maturities of less than 12 
months from the reporting date, those which management has 
the express intention of holding for less than 12 months from 
the reporting date or those that are required to be sold to raise 
operating capital, in which case they are classified as current 
assets.

All financial liabilities are classified as non-current except those 
held for trading, those expected to be settled in the Group’s 
normal operating cycle, those payable or expected to be paid 
within 12 months of the reporting date and those which the 
Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
				  
(vii) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the financial asset have expired, when the 
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership, or when the Group has no reasonable expectations 
of recovering the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized 
only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged 
or cancelled or expires.

When a financial asset measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, other than an equity instrument, is 
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized 
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. For equity 
investments for which an irrevocable election has been made 
to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, 
such changes are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

(viii) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the statement of financial position only when there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(h) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred 
income tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis 
of the tax enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date.  Management periodically evaluates positions taken in 
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid 
to the tax authorities.
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(h) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, 
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial 
statements. However, if the deferred tax liabilities are not 
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; 
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a 
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax 
liability is settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognized 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary differences can 
be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences 
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is 
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets 
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a 
net basis
	
(i) Intangible assets 

(i) Goodwill
	                                                                             
Goodwill represents the difference between the aggregate of (i) 
the value of the consideration transferred (generally at fair value), 
(ii) the amount of any non-controlling interest (NCI), and (iii) in a 
business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date 
fair value of the acquirer’s previously-held equity interest in the 
acquiree, and the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the 
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible 
assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included 
in investment in associates. Goodwill is tested annually for 
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for 
purposes of impairment testing. 

The allocation is made to those cash generating units or groups 
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the 
business combination in which the goodwill arose and are 
identified according to operating segments.

(ii) Computer Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the 
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the 
specific software. The costs are amortized over their estimated 
useful lives (three to five years). Costs associated with 
developing or maintaining computer software programmes 
are recognized as an expense incurred. Costs that are directly 
associated with the production of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Group, and that will probably 
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, 
are recognized as intangible assets. Direct costs include the 
software development employee costs and an appropriate 
portion of relevant overheads. Acquired computer software and 
computer software development costs recognized as assets 
are amortized over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding 
three years).

(iii) Transmission frequencies

Acquired transmission frequencies are capitalized on the basis 
of the costs incurred to acquire and to bring them to use. 
Transmission frequencies are tested annually for impairment 
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(j) Employee benefits
	
(i) Post employment benefit obligations
	
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit 
scheme for its employees. For defined contribution plans, the 
group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered 
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or 
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. 
Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is 
available.

The Company and all its employees also contribute to the 
National Social Security Funds in the countries which they 
operate, which are defined contribution schemes. The Group’s 
contributions to the defined contribution schemes are charged 
to profit or loss in the year to which they relate. The Company 
has no further obligation once the contributions have been paid.

In addition, the Group operates a gratuity scheme where the 
group makes contributions to a special purpose vehicle that 
is administered independently. The employees are entitled 
to specified benefits as per the scheme’s rules. The gratuity 
scheme is a defined benefit scheme. The liability or asset 
recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of 
defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 
plan assets. The present value of the defined benefit obligation 
and related service costs is determined using the ‘projected unit 
credit method’, which sees each period of service as giving rise 
to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each 
unit separately in building up the final obligation. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated every five years by independent 
actuaries.
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(j) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Other entitlements

The estimated monetary liability for employees accrued annual 
leave entitlement at the reporting date is recognized as an 
expense accrual                                                                                          

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is 
terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, 
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for these benefits. The group recognizes termination 
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group 
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when 
the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within 
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination 
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on 
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period are discounted to their present value.

(iv) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and 
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration 
the profit attributable to the company’s shareholders after 
certain adjustments. The group recognizes a provision where 
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has 
created a constructive obligation.

(k) Functional currency and translation of foreign currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the 
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the 
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements 
are presented in Kenyan Shillings (Shs), which is the Company’s 
functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional 
currency using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end 
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash 
and cash equivalents are presented in profit or loss within 
‘finance income/costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and 
losses are presented in profit or loss within ‘other income’ or 
‘other expenses’.

(iii) Group companies

i. The results and financial position of all the Group entities 
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary 
economy) that have a functional currency different from the 
presentation currency are translated into the presentation 
currency as follows:

•	 assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position 
presented are translated at the closing rate at the end of the 
reporting period;

•	 income and expenses for each income statement amount 
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average 
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect 
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which 
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the 
transactions); and

•	 all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed or sold, exchange 
differences that are recorded in equity are recognized in profit 
or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair 
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity 
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and 
translated at the closing rate.

(l) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets 
that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash-generating units).
                                                                                                                                                                         
(m) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the period 
in which they are declared. Proposed dividends are shown as 
separate component of equity until declared.

(n) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents
	
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held 
at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 
	
(p) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when (1) the Group 
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events; (2) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation; and 3) the amount has been 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future 
operating losses.
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(p) Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood 
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is 
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to 
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be 
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the obligation.  Any increase 
in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as an 
expense.

(q) Leases

At inception of a contract, the group assesses whether a contract 
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease 
in IFRS 16. 
	
Definition of Lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a 
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset to a customer for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration
	
The Group as a Lessee

As a lessee, the Group leases various assets, mainly offices. 
These lease contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 
1 to 6 years but may have extension/termination options. The 
Group previously classified leases as operating or finance 
leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred 
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of the underlying asset to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group 
recognises right‑of‑use assets and lease liabilities for the 
qualifying leases (i.e. these leases are on statement of financial 
position).

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. At 
commencement or on modification of a contract that contains 
a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the 
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their 
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for 
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease 
and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a 
single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain 
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease 
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security 
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased 
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed 
payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any 
lease incentives receivable. Lease payments to be made under 
reasonably certain extension options are also included in the 
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 
which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s 
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use 
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, 
security and conditions. 

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group where 
possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the 
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes 
in financing conditions since third party financing was received. 
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the 
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which 
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities 
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental 
borrowing rate. 

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance 
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease 
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the 
following: 
• 	 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 
• 	 any lease payments made at or before the commencement 

date less any lease incentives received 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of 
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. 
If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, 
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s 
useful life. While the group revalues its land and buildings that 
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has 
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the 
group. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and 
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on 
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without 
a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment 
and small items of office furniture.
	
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease 
if both:
•	 The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding 

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and
•	 The consideration for the lease increases by an amount 

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in 
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone 
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
  	
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including 
experience of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.
	
(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
	
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the 
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are addressed below.

a) Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for 
financial assets measured at amortized cost is an area that 
requires the use of models and significant assumptions about 
future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the 
likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). 
A number of significant judgements and estimations are also 
required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring 
ECL, such as:

•	 The application of IFRS 9 risk parameters i.e. probably of 
default (PD), loss given at default (LGD) and exposure at 
default (EAD) to trade receivables; and

•	 The definition of default, determination of probability of 
default matrix and identification of exposures with significant 
deterioration in credit quality. 

•	 Determination of expected future payment pattern for 
government advertising debt. 

	
b) Provision for claims and other liabilities 

The Group faces exposure to claims and other liabilities arising 
in the normal course of business. There is uncertainty as to how 
present and future claims and other liabilities will be resolved 
and therefore significant judgement is required in assessing 
the likely outcome and the potential liability for such matters. 
Management in consultation with the legal advisers estimates a 
provision based on past precedents.

c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful 
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant 
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product 
lifecycles for its assets. It could change significantly as a result 
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response 
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the 
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously 
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically 
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or 
sold.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

Critical estimates are made by management in assessment 
of impairment for non-financial assets. Significant estimates 
relate to the determination of the projected cash flows and the 
discount rate. 

e) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. 
Significant judgment is required in determining the Group’s 
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions 
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group 
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on 
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts 
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the 
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which 
such determination is made.
	
f)	 Lease term and discount rates determination on adoption 	
	 of IFRS 16 
Critical estimates are made by management in determining 
lease terms in lease contracts. Specifically, in determining 
which leases will be extended and renewed on expiry of the 
non-cancellable lease term. Estimates are also made on the 
discount rate. 

(ii) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
	
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, 
management has made judgements in determining the 
classification of financial assets and whether assets are 
impaired.
	
4. Financial risk management
	
The Group’s and the Company’s activity expose it to a variety 
of financial risks comprising market risk (including foreign 
exchange risks, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 
to minimize adverse effects on its financial performance within 
the options available in East Africa to hedge against such risks.
	
Risk management is carried out by management under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. Management identifies, 
evaluates and mitigates against financial risks. The Board 
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk and investing excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Company make significant purchases of 
raw materials in foreign currency, principally newsprint, inks and 
plates used in newspaper production, and TV programming used 
in broadcasting. This exposes the Group and the Company to 
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, 
primarily with respect to the US dollar.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
	
(a) Market risk (continued)
	
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)
	
Management manages this risk by making the significant 
foreign currency purchases within periods when the exchange 
rates are favourable. Foreign exchange risk arises from future 
commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and 
net investment in foreign operations. 

At 31 December 2020, if the shilling had weakened/strengthened 
against the US dollar and Euro by 5%, with all other variables 
held constant, the consolidated post tax profit for the year and 
equity would have been Shs 5.7 million higher/ lower for the US 
dollar whereas the Euro effect would have been Shs 1.0 million 
higher/ lower (2019: Shs 1.5 million for the US dollar and Shs 
0.1 million for the Euro) higher/ lower mainly as a result of 
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ and Euro-
denominated  trade payables and bank balances.
	
(ii)  Price risk
	
The Group and the Company do not hold any investments 
subject to price risk.

(iii)  Interest rate risk
	
The Group and the Company do not hold any borrowing and 
therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

(b) Credit risk and expected credit losses
	
Credit risk arises from cash and short term investments as well 
as trade and other receivables. The Group has policies in place 
to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate 
credit history. The credit controllers assess the credit quality 
of each customer, taking into account its financial position, 
past experience and other factors. For banks and financial 
institutions, only reputable well established financial institutions 
are accepted. For trade receivables, the credit controllers 
assess the credit quality of each customer, taking into account 
its financial position, past experience and other factors. The 
utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored.   
	
The amounts that represent the Group’s maximum exposure to 
credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets in 
the statement of financial position. 

The Group has adopted the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) model 
to determine the impairment of trade receivables. The Group 
opted to adopt the simplified approach of determining the 
impairment provision. This model includes some operational 
simplifications for trade and other receivables because they are 
often held by entities that do not have sophisticated credit risk 
management systems. These simplifications eliminate the need 
to calculate 12-month ECL and to assess when a significant 
increase in credit risk has occurred.

Using the simplified approach, management has segmented 
their accounts receivable balances into Government advertising 
debtors, other advertising debtors, and circulation and 
subscription debtors.

For the Government advertising debtors, management uses 
the Government debt collection trends in the past to determine 
the expected cash flows from these debts and discounts them 
to the present value to determine the provision. For the other 
advertising debtors, management determines probabilities of 
default (PD) using collection trends in the past adjusted for 
forward looking economic variables by a management multiplier. 
The average PDs are then used to determine the provision. 

For circulation and subscription debtors, management 
determines the portion of the debt not secured by a bank 
guarantee and applies a PD based on average collection trends 
in the past adjusted for forward looking economic variables 
on this unsecured portion to compute the provision. Dormant 
accounts are fully provided for.

Related party receivable balances are assessed for impairment 
based on the counterparty’s ability to settle on demand. Cash 
balances and long-term deposits have been assessed for credit 
loss based on the credit rating of the financial institutions 
holding the assets. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(b) Credit risk and expected credit losses (continued)

The amount that best represents the Group’s and Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December is made up as 
follows:

Trade receivables (Note 21)
Group

2020 Current 30 Days 60 Days 90 days 120+ days Total

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Gross carrying amount 407.0 298.4 194.6 142.3     3,523.0 4,565.3

Expected credit losses (46.2) (40.5) (39.5) (28.2) (2,377.8) (2,532.2)

Carrying amount 360.8 257.9 155.1 114.1 1,145.2 2,033.1

2019

Gross carrying amount 500.0 411.3 257.4 140.1   3,088.0 4,396.8

Expected credit losses (37.2) (38.4) (32.6) (24.3) (2,317.1) (2,449.6)

Carrying amount 462.8 372.9 224.8 115.8 770.9 1,947.2

Company

2020 Current 30 Days 60 Days 90 days 120+ days Total

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Gross carrying amount 273.4 205.0     151.2    118.1      2,687.3 3,435.0

Expected credit losses     (35.4) (31.0) (30.7) (20.2) (1,573.7) (1,691.0)

Carrying amount 238.0 174.0 120.5 97.9     1,113.6 1,744.0

2019

Gross carrying amount          370.0 323.6     209.4    113.2      2,302.5 3,318.7

Expected credit losses     (25.8) (28.3) (23.3) (17.9) (1,471.5) (1,566.8)

Carrying amount 344.2 295.3 186.1 95.3 831.0 1,751.9

The overall increase in the provision for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) results from higher Loss Given Default (LGD) rates after 
revision of IFRS 9 model to reflect the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and expectations going forward.

Shs 204.5 million was held as collateral in the form of bank guarantees for trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Shs 
238.6 million). The stated bank guarantee amounts approximate their fair value. 

Bank deposits and short-term investments Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Deposits with banks (Notes 19, 22 & 23) 2,367.7 1,848.0 1,895.0 1,468.3

Other short-term investments (Note 23) 600.1 822.1 600.1 822.1

Expected credit losses (18.9) - (18.9) -

Total carrying value 2,948.9 2,670.1 2,476.2 2,290.4
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate responsibility for 
liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which together with management, closely monitor the Group’s and 
Company’s short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate cash reserves, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity 
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group and the Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into the relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying 
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Liabilities less than 1 year Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Payables and accrued expenses (Note 24) 2,720.6 2,906.0 1,933.7 2,046.0

Lease liabilities (Note 16) 131.2 129.8 96.3 103.5

(d) Capital management

The Group’s and Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group and the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, issue new capital or sell assets to manage capital.

The capital structure of the Group and Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders, comprising issued capital and 
retained earnings. The Group and Company had no borrowings at year end (2019: Nil).

(e) Fair value estimation

The different level of fair value measurement hierarchy is described as follows:

•	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets (level 1);

•	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly (that is, as prices) or 
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

•	 Inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable data) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the year-end date. A market is 
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group and those 
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for 
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques such as 
discounted cash flow analysis. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and 
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2.					   

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of all assets and liabilities at the year-end date approximate their fair values.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Fair value estimation (continued)
				  
The following table shows an analysis of financial and non- financial instruments measured at fair value by level of the fair value 
hierarchy:

Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

At 31 December 2020

Non- financial assets

Freehold land and buildings  -   599.0 - 599.0

At 31 December 2019

Non- financial assets

Freehold land and buildings  -   595.2 - 595.2

Company

At 31 December 2020

Non- financial assets

Freehold land and buildings - 408.0 - 408.0

At 31 December 2019

Non- financial assets

Freehold land and buildings - 426.2 - 426.2

Land and buildings are categorized under Level 2 fair value hierarchy as their value is based on inputs other than quoted prices, or inputs that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly as prices or indirectly as derived from prices. There were no transfers between the various levels 
during the year.

5. Segmental information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the various products or section’s performance that are used by Executive 
Management Team that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group considers the business from a product perspective; 

(i) Newspapers and Digital 

(ii) Broadcasting

Newspapers and Digital – Incorporating sale of newspapers, advertisements published in the newspapers, advertisements in the digital platforms 
and subscriptions of e-paper. 

Broadcasting – Incorporating advertisements and other content aired on television.

The Executive Management team considers the East African countries in which the Group operates as one geographical segment because of 
similarities in the risks and returns in the four countries.

Other Group operations mainly comprise courier operations and third party printing services. Neither of these constitute a separately reportable 
segment and have therefore been included as part of Newspapers, and Digital on the basis that the said operations are closely related and have 
similar economic characteristics. 

There are no significant transactions between the two reportable segments.
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5. Segmental information (continued)

Entity-wide information 

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a point in time in the following major product lines;

Entity-wide information 

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a point in time in the following major product lines;

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Advertising revenue 4,416.4 6,010.6 3,257.5 4,576.4

Circulation revenue 1,761.5 2,392.4 1,345.1 1,844.1

Other 634.9 647.9 413.5 501.8

Total 6,812.8 9,050.9 5,016.1 6,922.3

Timing of revenue recognition:

- At a point in time 6,812.8 9,050.9 5,016.1 6,922.3

5 Segment performance

Nation Media Group is domiciled in Kenya. The revenue attributed to Kenya was Shs 5,016.1 million (2019: Shs 6,922.3 million) while the revenues 
attributed to all foreign countries in total from which the entity derives revenues was Shs 1,796.7 million (2019: Shs 2,128.6 million). The Group does 
not derive revenues in excess of 10% of the total Group’s revenue from any individual customer except the Government of Kenya.

Segment assets comprise primarily property, plant and equipment, inventories and receivables. They exclude operating cash, intangible assets, 
income taxes and investments. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets.
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5. Segmental information (continued) 

Statement of comprehensive income

Newspapers  
and Digital

Broadcasting Unallocated Total

   Shs m    Shs m    Shs m    Shs m

2020

Revenue 5,477.9 1,334.9 - 6,812.8

Cost of sales (845.4) (302.6) - (1,148.0)

Gross profit 4,632.5 1,032.3 - 5,664.8

Depreciation (464.6) (135.1) - (599.7)

Amortization (47.1) (9.1) - (56.2)

Provision for impairment of receivables (74.8) (49.5) - (124.3)

Other operating costs (3,629.9) (808.0) (540.1) (4,978.0)

Total operating expenses (4,216.4)         (1,001.7) (540.1) (5,758.2)

Operating profit 416.1 30.6 (540.1) (93.4)

Finance income - - 203.2 203.2

Finance cost (38.7) (3.3) - (42.0)

Share of results of associate - - 52.1 52.1

Contribution/profit before income tax 377.4 27.3 (284.8) 119.9

2019

Revenue 7,588.6 1,462.3 - 9,050.9

Cost of sales (1,415.3) (398.8) - (1,814.1)

Gross profit 6,173.3 1,063.5 - 7,236.8

Depreciation (484.1) (139.0) - (623.1)

Amortization (50.5) (1.9) - (52.4)

Provision for impairment of receivables 166.6 35.5 - 202.1

Other operating costs (4,325.1) (893.1) (434.0) (5,652.2)

Total operating expenses (4,693.1) (998.5) (434.0) (6,125.6)

Operating profit 1,480.2 65.0 (434.0) 1,111.2

Finance income - - 197.6 197.6

Finance cost (76.7) (7.7) - (84.4)

Share of results of associate - - 72.0 72.0

Contribution/profit before income tax 1,403.5 57.3 (164.4) 1,296.4
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5. Segmental information (continued) 

Statement of financial position

Newspapers  
and Digital Broadcasting Unallocated Total

2020    
Current assets
Inventories 470.3 51.1 - 521.4
Receivables and prepayments 1,260.7 1,577.9 665.9 3,504.5
Other assets - - 2,931.5 2,931.5
  1,731.0 1,629.0 3,597.4 6,957.4
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,688.3 280.7 2.2 1,971.2
Right of Use Asset 499.7 77.4 67.5 644.6
Investment in associate - - 1,485.4 1,485.4
Other assets - - 762.0 762.0
  2,188.0 358.1 2,317.1 4,863.2
Total assets 3,919.0 1,987.1 5,914.5 11,820.6
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued expenses 588.6 2,355.5 (223.5) 2,720.6
Lease liability 111.6 19.6 - 131.2
Other liabilities - - 558.3 558.3
  700.2 2,375.1 334.8 3,410.1
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability - - 448.4 448.4
Other liabilities - - 29.1 29.1

- - 477.5 477.5
Total liabilities 700.2 2,375.1 812.3 3,887.6
Capital expenditure 176.6 56.9 - 233.5

2019
Current assets
Inventories 606.0 50.7 - 656.7
Receivables and prepayments 1,183.6 1,608.9 830.5 3,623.0
Other assets - - 2,632.3 2,632.3
  1,789.6 1,659.6 3,462.8 6,912.0

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,959.8 343.1 2.2 2,305.1
Right of Use Asset 713.2 91.0 67.4 871.6
Investment in associate - - 1,422.6 1,422.6
Other assets - - 585.4 585.4

2,673.0 434.1 2,077.6 5,184.7
Total assets 4,462.6 2,093.7 5,540.4 12,096.7
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued expenses 564.8 2,772.0 (430.8) 2,906.0
Lease liability 114.9 14.9 - 129.8
Other liabilities - - 537.9 537.9
  679.7 2,786.9 107.1 3,573.7
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability 612.5 79.7 - 692.2
Other liabilities - - 33.3 33.3

612.5 79.7 33.3 725.5
Total liabilities 1,292.2 2,866.6 140.4 4,299.2
Capital expenditure 116.8 66.7 - 183.5
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6. Expenses by nature

         Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at operating profit: Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (19.7) (6.4) (16.1) (4.6)

Employee benefits expense (Note 7) 3,106.8 3,396.6 2,267.4 2,480.5

Trade receivables-provision for impairment (Note 21) 124.3 (202.1) 124.2 (198.8)

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (Note 14) 450.9 474.7 345.0 368.5

Amortization of leases (Note 16) 150.6 148.5 95.5 101.6

Goodwill impairment (Note 15) - 4.0 - -

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 15) 54.4 52.2 53.0 51.5

Consumption of inventories 801.6 1,357.4 586.3 992.6

Provision for inventory 1.5 - 1.0 -

Auditors’ remuneration 23.4 25.2 13.3 15.4

Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 43.3 21.3 34.9 9.9
                                                                       

7. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 2,965.8 3,217.4 2,185.2 2,368.7

Defined contribution benefit scheme 71.9 95.5 66.2 89.3

National Social Security Fund 56.6 64.2 3.5 3.7

Post-employment benefit obligation (Note 26) 12.5 19.5 12.5 18.8

3,106.8 3,396.6 2,267.4 2,480.5

The number of  persons employed by the Group at the year-end was: 2020 2019

Number Number

Full time 930 1,112

Part time 388 466

1,318 1,578

8. Finance cost and income                                                    

        Group         Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Finance income:

Interest income 203.2 197.6 170.6 164.8

Finance costs:

Interest on leases (Note 16) (42.0) (84.4) (36.4) (70.3)

9. Income tax expense

Current income tax:

- Current year charge to profit of loss 150.0 403.6 121.1 390.3

- Under/(over) provision of current tax in prior years 4.5 9.9 3.2 -

Deferred income tax (Note 13): (82.5) 26.9 (84.8) 13.4

Total income tax expense 72.0 440.4 39.5 403.7
                                                       

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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9. Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the Group and Company’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax 
rate of the home country as follows:

           Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Profit before income tax 119.9 1,296.4 76.2 1,202.8

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of Kenya 25%, Subsidiaries 
30% (2019:30%)

42.2 388.9 19.1 360.8

Tax effect of:

 - Income not subject to tax   (63.9) (80.8) (40.8) (59.2)

 - Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 59.2 105.2 53.9 102.1

Effect of change in tax rate (17.9) -   (17.9) -

Under/(over) provision of deferred tax in prior years 27.9 17.2 22.0 -

Under/(over) provision of current tax in prior years 4.5 9.9 3.2 -

Deferred tax derecognized 20.0 - -

Income tax expense     72.0 440.4 39.5 403.7

The statutory tax rate in Kenya was reviewed downwards from 30% to 25% effective April 2020 to December 2020 in line with 
KRA directive to cushion companies from COVID-19 effects. The tax rate in other countries in which the Group operates was 
30%.

10. Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Group

2020 2019

Net profit attributable to shareholders (Shs million) 48.1 849.3

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million) 197.9 188.5

Basic earnings per share (Shs) 0.2 4.5

b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and bonus shares recommended for issue. A bonus issue at the rate of one 
fully paid ordinary share for every ten ordinary shares held in the issued and paid up capital of the Company as at 12 June 2020 was 
approved during AGM held on 26 June 2020.

2020 2019

Net profit attributable to shareholders (Shs million) - 849.3

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million) - 207.4

Diluted earnings per share (Shs) - 4.1

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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11. Share capital

Group & Company

Number 
of shares 
(million) 

 Ordinary 
shares 
Shs m 

Authorised (par value of Shs 2.5 per share) 240.0 600.0

Issued and fully paid:

31 December 2019 188.5 471.4

31 December 2020 207.4 518.5

Movement of share capital is as follows:

At start of year 188.5 471.4

Bonus share issue 18.9 47.1

At end of year 207.4 518.5

Share buy back

The NMG Board of Directors resolved to propose to its shareholders the purchase of up to ten percent (10%) of its issued and 
paid-up share capital in a share Buyback Programme in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2015 of the Laws 
of Kenya. This will give NMG shareholders an option to cash in on their investments. The Buyback Programme is subject to 
regulatory and shareholder approvals.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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12. Other Reserves

Revaluation 
reserve on 

buildings
Controlling 

Interest
Currency 

translation Total

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Group

As at 1 January 2019 177.6 (53.9) (260.1) (136.4)

Share of comprehensive income from associate - (15.5) - (15.5)

Currency translation differences - - 21.6 21.6

Transfer of excess depreciation (6.5) - - (6.5)

Deferred income tax on transfer of depreciation 1.9 - - 1.9

(4.6) - - (4.6)

Balance as at 31 December 2019 173.0 (69.4) (238.5) (134.9)

As at 1 January 2020 173.0 (69.4) (238.5) (134.9)

Share of comprehensive income from associate - 18.4 - 18.4

Currency translation differences - - 63.4 63.4

Transfer of excess depreciation (6.5) - - (6.5)

Deferred tax on transfer of depreciation                  1.9 - -               1.9

(4.6) (4.6)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 168.4 (51.0) (175.1) (57.7)

Revaluation 
reserve on 

buildings Total

Shs m Shs m

Company

As at 1 January 2019 102.1 102.1

Transfer of excess depreciation (3.7) (3.7)

Deferred tax on transfer of depreciation 1.1 1.1

(2.6) (2.6)

Balance as at 31 December 2019 99.5 99.5
	

As at 1 January 2020 99.5 99.5

Transfer of excess depreciation (3.7) (3.7)

Deferred tax on transfer of depreciation 1.1 1.1

(2.6) (2.6)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 96.9 96.9

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13. Deferred income tax

 Group  Company 

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

At start of year, (255.3) (282.2) (206.0) (219.4)

(Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9) (82.5) 26.9 (84.8) 13.4

Charge/ (credit) to the statement of comprehensive income - - - -

At end of year (337.8) (255.3) (290.8) (206.0)

Presented by:

Deferred income tax liabilities 29.1 27.3 - -

Deferred income tax assets (366.9) (282.6) (290.8) (206.0)

At end of year (337.8) (255.3) (290.8) (206.0)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

Charged/ 
(credited) 

to P&L

Charged/ 
(credited) 

to OCI1.1.20 31.12.20

Group Year ended 31 December 2020 Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Deferred income tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment 154.8 (39.4) - 115.4

Revaluation of buildings 75.5 (0.1) - 75.4

Currency translation differences 6.3 (10.1) - (3.8)

Deferred tax derecognized 16.2 20.0 - 36.2

Unrealized exchange gains                                                    2.6 37.8 - 40.4

255.4 8.2 - 263.6

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions (493.5) (57.4) - (550.9)

Tax losses (2.2) (1.6) - (3.8)

Unrealized exchange losses (15.0) (31.7) - (46.7)

(510.7) (90.7) - (601.4)

Net deferred income tax (asset)/ liability (255.3) (82.5) - (337.8)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13. Deferred income tax (continued)

1.1.19 to P&L to OCI 31.12.19

Group Year ended 31 December 2019 Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Deferred income tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment 226.8 (72.0) - 154.8

Revaluation of buildings 75.7 (0.2) - 75.5

Currency translation differences 6.5 (0.2) - 6.3

Deferred tax derecognized - 16.2 - 16.2

Unrealized exchange gains                                                    4.4 (1.8) - 2.6

313.4 (58.0) - 255.4

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions (563.5) 70.0 - (493.5)

Tax losses (2.2) - - (2.2)

Unrealized exchange losses (29.9) 14.9 - (15.0)

(595.6) 84.9 (510.7)

Net deferred income tax (asset)/ liability (282.2) 26.9 - (255.3)

(credited) (credited)

1.1.20  to P&L to OCI 31.12.20

Company 
Year ended 31 December 2020 Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Deferred income tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment 151.7 (31.9) - 119.8

Revaluation of buildings 43.3 - - 43.3

Unrealized exchange gains 4.0 38.1 - 42.1

199.0 6.2 - 205.2

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions (410.2) (59.3) - (469.5)

Unrealized exchange losses 5.2 (31.7) - (26.5)

(405.0) (91.0) - (496.0)

Net deferred income tax (asset)/ liability         (206.0) (84.8) - (290.8)
  

Company 
Year ended 31 December 2019 1.1.19

Charged/ 
(credited) 

to P&L

Charged/ 
(credited) 

to OCI 31.12.19

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Deferred income tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment 210.7 (59.0) - 151.7

Revaluation of buildings 43.3 - - 43.3

Unrealized exchange gains 7.5 (3.5) - 4.0

261.5 (62.5) - 199.0

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions (471.2) 61.0 - (410.2)

Unrealized exchange losses (9.7) 14.9 - 5.2

(480.9) 75.9 - (405.0)

Net deferred income tax (asset)/ liability (219.4) 13.4 - (206.0)
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14 (a) Land and buildings

Freehold land Buildings Total

Group Shs m Shs m Shs m

As at 1 January 2019

Valuation 9.1 802.0                 811.1

Accumulated depreciation - (193.8)                (193.8)

Net book value 9.1                608.2                  617.3

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value 9.1 608.2 617.3

Depreciation charge - (22.2) (22.2)

Currency translation differences - 0.1 0.1

Closing net book value 9.1 586.1 595.2

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value 9.1 586.1 595.2

Addition - 0.6 0.6

Reclassification - 13.6 13.6

Depreciation charge - (22.3) (22.3)

Currency translation differences - 11.9 11.9

Closing net book value 9.1 589.9 599.0

As at 31 December 2020

Valuation 9.1          829.9                   839.0

Accumulated depreciation -   (240.0) (240.0)

Net book value                     9.1               589.9 599.0

Freehold land Buildings Total

Company Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2019          

Opening net book value 9.1 435.3 444.4

Depreciation charge - (18.2) (18.2)

Closing net book value 9.1 417.1 426.2

As at 31 December 2019

Valuation 9.1 570.8 579.9

Accumulated depreciation - (153.7) (153.7)

Net book value 9.1 417.1 426.2

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value 9.1 417.1 426.2

Depreciation charge - (18.2) (18.2)

Closing net book value 9.1 398.9 408.0

As at 31 December 2020

Valuation 9.1 570.8 579.9

Accumulated depreciation - (171.9) (171.9)

Net book value 9.1 398.9 408.0

The Group’s freehold land and buildings were revalued in 2017 by independent professional valuers. Valuations were made on 
the basis of open market value for existing use. The book values of the revalued assets were adjusted to the revalued amounts. 
Increase/ (decrease) arising on the revaluation was recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation 
surplus.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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14 (a) Land and buildings (continued)

If the buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Cost 560.7             560.7 411.0 411.0

Accumulated depreciation (211.8)  (201.4)    (188.4) (170.2)

Net book value              348.9 359.3 222.6 240.8

14 (b) Plant and equipment										        

Plant and 
equipment Motor vehicle Total

Group Shs m Shs m Shs m

As at 1 January 2019

Cost          8,643.3           519.8                   9,163.1

Accumulated depreciation (6,731.9)   (431.4) (7,163.3)

Net book value 1,911.4 88.4 1,999.8

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value 1,911.4 88.4 1,999.8

Additions 150.8 10.8 161.6

Disposals (0.1) - (0.1)

Depreciation charge (406.9) (45.6) (452.5)

Currency translation differences 1.2 - 1.2

Closing net book value 1,656.4 53.6 1,710.0

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value 1,656.4 53.6 1,710.0

Additions 58.8 18.6 77.4

Reclassification (13.6) - (13.6)

Disposals (1.7) - (1.7)

Depreciation charge (389.6) (39.0) (428.6)

Currency translation differences 28.7 - 28.7

Closing net book value 1,339.0 33.2 1,372.2

As at 31 December 2020

Cost         8,703.0              549.2 9,252.2

Accumulated depreciation   (7,364.0) (516.0) (7,880.0)

Net book value 1,339.0 33.2 1,372.2
      

Reclassification of Shs 13.6 million relates to a previously work in progress asset that was accounted for under PPE, which upon 
completion was reclassified to buildings.    

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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14 (b) Plant and equipment (continued) 

Plant and equipment Motor vehicle Total

Company Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2019  

Opening net book value            1,532.6 74.2 1,606.8

Additions   70.7 22.5 93.2

Disposals   (0.1) - (0.1)

Depreciation charge (308.2) (42.1) (350.3)

Closing net book value 1,295.0 54.6 1,349.6

As at 31 December 2019

Cost 6,596.8 453.8 7,050.6

Accumulated depreciation (5,301.8) (399.2) (5,701.0)

Net book value 1,295.0 54.6 1,349.6

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value 1,295.0 54.6 1,349.6

Additions 19.1 12.5 31.6

Disposals (0.2) - (0.2)

Depreciation charge (296.4)  (30.4) (326.8)

Closing net book value 1,017.5 36.7 1,054.2

As at 31 December 2020

Cost 6,615.7 466.3 7,082.0

Accumulated depreciation (5,598.2) (429.6) (6,027.8)

Net book value 1,017.5 36.7 1,054.2

NMG commissioned a printing press in 2015 whose book value was Shs 959 million as at December 2020.  Following the global 
shift of the media industry towards the digital space, management conducted an assessment of the printing press to test possible 
impairment. The computations were based on the discounted cash flow model covering six years from 2021 to 2026 when the press 
will be fully depreciated. The calculations used cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering 
the period. 

The table below sets out the key assumptions used by management;

Discount rate (WACC)                        18.3%

Residual value                                      25.0%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows: 

•	 Discount rate (WACC) -  Reflect specific risks relating to the company’s business and the country-specific factors 

•	 Residual Value - This was based on the salvage value of the press, its good condition and the maintenance support received 
from the manufacturer. 

Following the above exercise, it was concluded that the printing press has adequate headroom and is not impaired. Management 
will continue to review the business performance and evaluate the assumptions used in the impairment assessment model.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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15. Intangible assets

Goodwill
Computer 

software
Transmission 

frequencies Total

Group Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

As at 1 January 2019

Cost 187.9 714.6 27.2 929.7

Impairment/ accumulated amortization (160.9) (515.8)  (27.2) (703.9)

Net book value 27.0 198.8 - 225.8

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value             27.0 198.8 - 225.8

Additions - 21.9 - 21.9

Amortization - (52.2) - (52.2)

Impairment (4.0) - - (4.0)

Currency translation differences - 0.1 - 0.1

Closing net book value 23.0 168.6 - 191.6

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value               23.0 168.6 - 191.6

Additions - 155.5 - 155.5

Amortization - (54.4) - (54.4)

Currency translation differences - 0.2 - 0.2

Closing net book value 23.0 269.9 - 292.9

As at 31 December 2020

Cost                  187.9 892.3 27.2 1,107.4

Impairment/ accumulated amortization (164.9)                (622.4) (27.2) (814.5)

Net book value               23.0 269.9 - 292.9

The goodwill arose from the historical acquisition of various entities and is allocated to the newspaper and broadcasting 
segments. The directors monitor goodwill impairment at the level of the acquired entity, being the cash generating unit (CGU). 
The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the 
use of assumptions. 

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocated is presented below:
               

Operating Segment 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

Monitor Publications Limited (MPL)              Newspapers 23.0 23.0

Movement in goodwill 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

At start of year 23.0 27.0

Impairment of goodwill allocated to RUL - (4.0)

At end of year 23.0 23.0

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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15. Intangible assets (continued)

Significant estimates : key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations 

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of goodwill has 
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial 
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the 
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the media industry 
in which the CGU operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them;

Monitor Publication Limited

   2020 2019

Pre-tax Discount rate 17.7% 22%

Long term growth rate 4.8% 6%

Gross profit margin 85% 77%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows;

•	 Pre-tax Discount rate - reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in which they operate. The rate is consistent 
with the investors expected returns (the weighted average cost of capital) bearing in mind the country risk premiums.

•	 Long term growth rate - is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The rates are consistent 
with forecasts included in industry reports eg inflation rate.

•	 Gross profit margin - is based on past performance and management’s expectations for the future.

Computer 
software

Transmission 
Frequencies Total

Company Shs m Shs m Shs m

As at 1 January 2019

Cost 650.4 27.2 677.6

Accumulated amortization (451.6) (27.2) (478.8)

Net book value 198.8 - 198.8

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value 198.8 - 198.8

Additions                20.4 -                20.4

Amortization (51.5) -    (51.5)

Closing net book value 167.7 - 167.7

As at 31 December 2019

Cost 670.8 27.2 698.0

Accumulated amortization (503.1) (27.2) (530.3)

Net book value 167.7 - 167.7

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value 167.7 - 167.7

Additions 151.9 - 151.9

Amortization (53.0) - (53.0)

Closing net book value 266.6 - 266.6

As at 31 December 2020

Cost 822.7 - 822.7

Accumulated amortization (556.1) - (556.1)

Net book value 266.6 - 266.6

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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16. Leases

(i) Right of Use Asset

Land Buildings
Plant and 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicle Total

Group Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 67.4 783.6 8.1 12.5 871.6

Additions - 32.2 3.9 14.7 50.8

Amortization for the year (1.8) (136.2) (4.3) (8.3) (150.6)

Lease Modifications - (132.9) (7.3) (140.2)

Currency translation differences 1.9 10.9 - 0.2 13.0

At end of year 67.5 557.6 7.7 11.8 644.6
 

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year 69.3 - - - 69.3

Adoption of IFRS 16 - 919.5 12.5 18.8 950.8

Amortization for the year (1.8) (135.9) (4.4) (6.3) (148.4)

Currency translation differences (0.1) - - - (0.1)

At end of year 67.4 783.6 8.1 12.5 871.6

Land Buildings
Plant and 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicle Total

Company Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 40.9 653.2 8.1 - 702.2

Additions                 - 23.7 3.8                    - 27.5

Amortization for the year (1.4) (89.8) (4.3) - (95.5)

Lease modification                  - (131.0) - - (131.0)

At end of year 39.5 456.1 7.6                 - 503.2

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year 42.3 - - - 42.3

Adoption of IFRS 16 - 749.0 12.5                    - 761.5

Amortization for the year (1.4) (95.8) (4.4) - (101.6)

At end of year 40.9 653.2 8.1                 - 702.2

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

16. Leases (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities

The movement in the lease liabilities over the year was as follows:

Buildings
Plant and 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicle Total

Group Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 800.5 8.5 13.0 822.0

Additions 32.2 3.8 14.8 50.8

Interest on lease liability 40.9 0.9 0.2 42.0

Lease modification (133.1)                  - (9.7) (142.8)

Lease payments (193.9) (4.8) (5.7) (204.4)

Currency translation differences 11.0 - 1.0 12.0

At end of year 557.6 8.4 13.6 579.6

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year - - - -

Adoption of IFRS 16 919.5 12.5 18.8 950.8

Lease payments (201.1) (5.2)     (6.9) (213.2)

Interest on lease liability 82.1 1.2 1.1 84.4

At end of year 800.5 8.5 13.0 822.0

Buildings
Plant and 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicle Total

Company Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year ended 31 December 2020

At start of year 666.3 8.5 - 674.8

Additions 23.7 3.8                    - 27.5

Interest expense 35.5 0.9                    - 36.4

Payments (149.3) (4.8) - (154.1)

Lease modification (130.5) - - (130.5)

At end of year 445.7 8.4                 - 454.1

Year ended 31 December 2019

At start of year - - - -

Adoption of IFRS 16 749.0 12.5                    - 761.5

Interest expense 69.1 1.2 - 70.3

Payments (151.8) (5.2) - (157.0)

At end of year 666.3 8.5                 - 674.8
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16. Leases (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

The split of the lease liabilities is as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Current 131.2 129.8 96.3 103.5

Non-current 448.4 692.2 357.8 571.3

At end of year 579.6 822.0 454.1 674.8

The lease modification was as a result of rent reduction with no escalation on the renewed lease agreement of the main premises.

17. Investment in associate 

Group

2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

At start of year 1,422.6 1,373.8

Share of profit before income tax 75.0 101.7

Share of income tax expense (22.9) (29.7)

52.1 72.0

Dividends received (7.7) (7.7)

Share of other comprehensive income 18.4 (15.5)

At end of year 1,485.4 1,422.6

Investment in associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts that reflect the Group’s share of 
the net assets of the associate and includes goodwill on acquisition.

Other comprehensive income from associate relates to the net fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets (quoted and unquoted 
investments).  

Key financial information on the associate, which is unlisted, was as follows:

Country of 
incorporation

% interest 
held Assets Liabilities Revenues

Profit/ 
(loss)

Other 
Compre-hensive income

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Year 2020

Property Development 
and Management Limited Kenya 20% 10,138.7 2,322.5 939.5 262.1 92.1

Year 2019

Property Development 
and Management Limited Kenya 20% 10,157.0 2,654.6 1,178.0 360.2 (77.4)

There were no changes in the interest held in the unlisted associate during the year. The initial investment in associate carried in the 
Company’s statement of financial position is Shs 94.6 million (2019: Shs 94.6 million).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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18. Investment in subsidiaries

The Company’s interest in its subsidiaries, all of which are unlisted and all of which have the same year end as the Company, were 
as follows as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Company

Country of  incorporation Holding 2020 2019

% Shs m Shs m

Trading subsidiaries:

Nation Marketing & Publishing Limited Kenya 100.0 0.5 0.5

Monitor Publications Limited Uganda 83.3 75.1 75.1

Mwananchi Communications Limited Tanzania 100.0 569.3 569.3

Nation Holdings Tanzania Limited Tanzania 100.0 150.4 150.4

Africa Broadcasting Uganda Limited Uganda 100.0 347.7 347.7

Nation Holdings Rwanda Limited Rwanda 100.0 8.3 8.3

Kenya Buzz Limited Kenya 51.0 2.0 2.0

1,153.3       1,153.3

Non trading subsidiaries:

Nation Carriers Limited Kenya 100.0 3.0 3.0

Nation Infotech Limited Kenya 100.0 1.5 1.5

East African Televisions Network Limited Kenya 100.0 - -

Africa Broadcasting Limited Kenya 100.0 - -

Nation Newspapers Limited Kenya 100.0 - -

Nation Carriers Uganda Limited Uganda 100.0 - -

Nation Carriers Tanzania Limited Tanzania 100.0 - -

Africa Broadcasting Tanzania Limited Tanzania 100.0 - -

Nation Printers and Publishers Limited Kenya 100.0 - -

Radio Uhuru Limited Tanzania 100.0 20.5 20.5

1,178.3 1,178.3

Provision for impairment on investment in:

Mwananchi Communications Limited (416.8) (416.8)

Africa Broadcasting Uganda Limited (17.5) (17.5)

Radio Uhuru Limited (20.5) (20.5)

Nation Holdings Rwanda Limited (8.3) (8.3)

Nation Holdings Tanzania Limited (12.4) (12.4)

(475.5) (475.5)

Net investment in subsidiaries 702.8 702.8

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

The company tests whether investment in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment whenever indicators are noted. As a result of 
decline in performance, the Directors performed a valuation exercise on Mwananchi Communications Limited. The recoverable value 
of the entity has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based 
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated 
using the estimated growth rates stated below. 

The following table sets out the key assumptions:

Mwananchi Communications Limited

2020 2019

Pre-tax Discount rate 16.7% 17.9%

Long term growth rate                  5.9%                  3%

Gross profit margin 76% 68%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows;

•	 Pre-tax Discount rate - reflects the specific risks relating to the entity and the countries in which the subsidiary operates. The 
rate is consistent with the investors expected returns (the weighted average cost of capital) bearing in mind the country risk 
premiums.

•	 Long term growth rate - is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The rates 
are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports e.g. inflation rate.

•	 Gross profit margin - is based on past performance and management’s expectations for the future.

Following the above exercise, there was no additional provision for impairment made on the Company’s investment in Mwananchi 
Communications Limited.

19. Other assets

Group & Company

2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

Long-term deposits 74.7 111.1

The balance relates to long-term deposits held with a bank as back up funds for staff mortgage scheme. The long-term deposits 
are carried at amortized cost.

20. Inventories

        Group            Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Raw materials 407.3 553.5 345.7 429.6

Engineering spares 229.7 226.1 199.9 201.3

Other stock 69.3 60.4 68.2 59.1

Gross inventory 706.3 840.0 613.8 690.0

Less: provision for obsolete stock (184.9) (183.3) (182.0) (181.1)

521.4 656.7 431.8 508.9

Inventories are held at cost. The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in the consolidated ‘cost of sales’ 
amounted to Shs 801.6 million (2019: Shs 1,357.5 million).  
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21. Receivables and prepayments

           Group         Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Trade receivables 4,565.3 4,396.8      3,435.0 3,318.7

Less: provision for impairment (2,532.2) (2,449.6) (1,691.0) (1,566.8)

2,033.1 1,947.2 1,744.0 1,751.9

Due from related parties (Note 31) 4.0 3.7 604.6 536.9

Less: provision for impairment - - (364.8) (322.2)

4.0 3.7 239.8 214.7

Other receivables and prepayments 1,467.4 1,672.1           815.7 907.5

3,504.5 3,623.0 2,799.5 2,874.1

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

       Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

At start of year 2,449.6 2,683.4 1,566.8 1,765.6

Charge for the year 124.3 (202.1) 124.2 (198.8)

Debt write off (41.7) (31.7) - -

At end of year 2,532.2 2,449.6 1,691.0 1,566.8

The carrying amounts of the above receivables approximate their fair values.
	

22. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and term deposits held 
with banks, maturing in less than 90 days from origination. The year-end cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

     Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Cash and bank balances 341.7 322.5 272.0 246.0

Fixed deposits with banks 1,002.5 716.5 791.2 571.3

1,344.2 1,039.0 1,063.2 817.3

23. Short-term investments

Fixed deposits with banks 929.9 697.9 738.2 539.9

Other short-term investments 600.1 822.1 600.1 822.1

1,530.0 1,520.0 1,338.3 1,362.0

The short term investments include term deposits, treasury bills and other short term investments with maturity more than 90 
days but less than one year. Included in the other short term investments is a commercial paper and fixed deposits with related 
parties. Refer to Note 31 (vii) for further details.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank deposits during the year was 7.2% (2019: 8.1%) and that of the other 
short term investments was 9.7% (2019: 9.9%). The carrying amounts of the above short term investments approximate their 
fair values.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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24. Payables and accrued expenses

      Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Trade payables 416.1 571.8 280.0 378.4

Due to related parties (Note 31) 9.3 17.6 60.6 36.4

Accrued expenses 1,358.3 1,173.6 1,068.1 944.6

Other payables 936.9 1,143.0 525.0 686.6

2,720.6 2,906.0 1,933.7 2,046.0

The carrying amounts of the above payables and accrued expenses approximate their fair values.

25. Provisions for claims and other liabilities

Group Company

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

2020 2019 2020 2019

At 1 January 537.9 527.2 515.1 506.3

Payments in the year (43.5) (56.5) (40.4) (55.9)

Charge for the year 63.9 67.2 61.8 64.7

At 31 December 558.3 537.9 536.5 515.1

The Group makes specific provisions for claims and other liabilities arising in the normal course of business. Specific provi-
sions are made for estimated claims and other liabilities to the extent that the Group considers it probable that there will be an 
outflow of economic benefits and the amount can be reliably estimated. Any insurance reimbursements in relation to claims 
and other liabilities are only recognized when the Group is certain of reimbursement. Typically, this will only occur when a reim-
bursement claim is accepted by the insurer.

Due to the nature of these provisions, management is unable to estimate the timing of their settlement with certainty. The impact 
of discounting on the provision is not considered to be material.

26. Post-employment benefit obligation		

The Group maintains a gratuity scheme under which qualifying employees are entitled to receive remuneration equal to the sum 
of two weeks’ pay for every year of service completed upon leaving the Group. 

The amount included in the statement of financial position arising from the post-employment benefit obligation is arrived at as 
follows:

Group and Company

2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

Opening balance 6.0 2.4

Payments in the year (46.0) (15.9)

Charge to P&L 12.5 19.5

Closing balance (27.5) 6.0

Present value of funded obligations                (88.0)              (111.1)

Fair value of plan assets (fixed term deposit) 115.5                105.1

Deficit/Surplus on funded plan 27.5 (6.0)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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26. Post-employment benefit obligation (continued)

The scheme was last valued by an independent actuary as at 31 December 2015. The significant actuarial assumptions were as 
follows;

Discount rate	 14%

Inflation rate	 6%

Current service cost (% salary) 	 1.6%

Assumed retirement age	 55 years

A slight increase or reduction in the actuarial assumptions does not result in a material change in the liability and the Group 
adopted the most conservative resultant liability.

27. Dividends

During the year, no interim dividend was paid (2019: Shs 282.8 million). At the annual general meeting to be held in May 2021, no 
final dividend in respect to the year ended 31 December 2020 will be proposed. 

28. Commitments

Capital expenditure	

Commitments for capital expenditure at the reporting date are as follow;
Group

2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

Contracted for but not provided for 1.7 27.8

29. Contingent liabilities

The Group is a defendant in various claims brought against the Group in the normal course of business. The Group has made 
provisions were deemed appropriate in line with group policy and legal advice. In the directors’ opinion after taking appropriate 
legal advice, no significant additional liability will arise from the resolution of these matters beyond what has been provided for 
in the financial statements. 

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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30. Cash generated from operations
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax 119.9 1,296.4 76.2 1,202.8

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 450.9 474.7 345.0 368.5

Amortization of leases (Note 16) 150.6 148.4 95.5 101.6

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 15) 54.4 52.2 53.0 51.5
Goodwill impairment - 4.0 - -

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (19.6) (6.5) (16.0) (4.6)

Impairment of subsidiary (Note 18) - - - 71.5

Interest income (Note 8) (203.2) (197.6) (170.6) (164.8)

Lease finance cost (Note 8) 42.0 84.4 36.4 70.3

Share of result after tax of associate (Note 17) (52.1) (72.0) - -

Dividend received from associate (Note 17) - - (7.7) (7.7)

Dividend received from subsidiary - - - (18.7)
Post-employment benefit obligation (Note 26) (33.6) 3.6 (33.6) 3.6

Changes in working capital:
- inventories 135.3 459.5 77.1 364.9
- receivables and prepayments 118.5 (466.5) 74.6 (121.3)
- payables and accrued expenses, and provisions (165.0) 187.2 (90.8) (35.8)

Cash generated from operations 598.1 1,967.8 439.1 1,881.8

31. Related parties

Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development, S.A (AKFED) incorporated in Switzerland is the principal shareholder of the Company. 
There are various other companies which are related to the Group through common shareholdings and directorships.

Group     Company
i) Sale of goods and services 2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Subsidiaries:
Monitor Publications Limited - - 9.7 11.8
Mwananchi Communications Limited - - 19.7 25.3
Other related parties:
Property Development and Management Limited 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
TPS Eastern Africa Limited 3.3 15.2 1.6 1.6

Jubilee Holdings Limited 9.4 8.0 8.0 5.5

14.2 24.7 40.5 45.7
ii) Purchase of goods and services
Subsidiaries:
Monitor Publications Limited - - 7.8 20.2
Mwananchi Communications Limited - - 27.6 37.6
Other related parties:
Property Development and Management Limited   88.9 166.4 88.9 166.4
TPS Eastern Africa Limited 17.1 38.7 0.6 6.7
Jubilee Holdings Limited 215.1 239.5 181.3 193.2

321.1 444.6 306.2 424.1

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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31. Related parties (continued)

Group Company

iii) Outstanding balances from transactions with related parties 2020 2019 2020 2019

Amounts due from related parties Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Subsidiaries:

Mwananchi Communications Limited - - 41.1 42.8

Monitor Publications Limited - - 159.0 137.2

Nation Infotech Limited - - 0.9 0.9

Radio Uhuru Limited - - 4.9 4.9

Nation Marketing and Publishing Limited - - 37.0 36.9

Nation Holdings Rwanda Limited - - 327.8 285.3

Kenya Buzz Limited - - 12.7 10.5

Nation Holdings Tanzania Limited - - 19.1 18.0

Other related parties:

TPS Eastern Africa Limited 1.9 3.1 0.1 -

Jubilee Holdings Limited 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4

Property Development and Management Limited 1.5 - 1.5 -

4.0 3.7 604.6 536.9

Provision for impairment

Nation Holdings Rwanda Limited - - (327.8) (285.3)

Nation Marketing and Publishing Limited - - (37.0) (36.9)

4.0 3.7 239.8 214.7

Amounts due to related parties

Subsidiaries:

Africa Broadcasting Uganda Limited - - 57.0 29.3

Monitor Publications Limited - - - -

Nation Marketing and Publishing Limited - - - -

Nation Holdings Tanzania Limited - - - -

Other related parties:

Property Development and Management Limited 0.7 0.7 1.3 0.7

Jubilee Insurance 7.8 14.2 1.7 5.2

TPS Eastern Africa Limited 0.8 2.7 0.6 1.2

9.3 17.6 60.6 36.4

iv) Loans to executive directors

At start of year - 2.4 - 2.4

Loans advanced during the year - 1.5 - 1.5

Loans repaid during the year - (3.9) - (3.9)

At end of year - 0.0 - 0.0

Loans to executive directors are on terms similar to those applicable to other employees and are included in other receivables.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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31. Related parties (continued)

v) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is 
shown below.

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Salaries and other short term employment benefits 149.6 283.6 128.5 255.6

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution) 10.2 18.6 7.7 15.4

159.8 302.2 136.2 271.0

vi) Directors’ remuneration

Group     Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shs m Shs m Shs m Shs m

Fees for services as director 25.8 29.6 24.0 27.4

Salaries and other short term employment benefits 46.6 58.8 46.6 58.8

Other benefits 3.5 4.1 3.5 4.1

75.9 92.5 74.1 90.3

vii) Other related party transactions

Included as part of short-term investments (Note 23) are the following balances with related parties:

Group and Company 

2020 2019

Shs m Shs m

Term deposit with Diamond Trust Bank Kenya Limited 610.0 567.5

Short term note investment with Industrial Promotion Services (K) Limited 400.0 400.0

1,010.0 967.5

The short term investment note with Industrial Promotion Services (K) Limited is for a duration of 3 months each (renewable), attracting interest 
rate of 7.8% per annum for 2020 and 9.3% per annum for 2019.  
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No. Name of shareholder No. of shares held %

1 THE AGA KHAN FUND FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (AKFED) 92,618,177 44.66

2 ALPINE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 21,050,222 10.15

3 KIMANI JOHN KIBUNGA 6,191,416 2.99

4 STANBIC NOMINEES LIMITED 3,150,471 1.52

5 STANDARD CHARTERED NOMINEES RESD A/C KE11450 2,512,210 1.21

6 THE JUBILEE INSURANCE COMPANY OF KENYA LIMITED 2,493,499 1.20

7 KENYA COMMERCIAL BANK NOMINEES LIMITED A/C 915B 2,492,636 1.20

8 STANDARD CHARTERED NOMINEES RESD A/C KE11401 2,343,788 1.13

9 STANDARD CHARTERED KENYA NOMINEES LTD A/C KE004667 1,820,900 0.88

10 ELGANTIN PROPERTIES LTD 1,650,000 0.80

Distribution of Shareholding 
At 31 December 2020

No. of shares No. of shareholders No. of shares held  % of shareholding 

1 - 500 5,083 901,078 0.43

501 - 5,000 5,313 11,046,995 5.33

5,001 - 10,000 870 6,249,265 3.01

10,001 - 100,000 1,203 29,344,413 14.15

100,001 - 1000,000 100 19,103,069 9.21

Over 1,000,000 14 140,751,695 67.87

TOTAL 12,583 207,396,515 100.00

Directors Shareholding
Name No. of shares held % of Shareholding

Yasmin Jetha 16,692 0.0080

Wangethi Mwangi 5,563 0.0027

Stephen Gitagama 1,425 0.0007

Principal Shareholders and their respective Shareholding 
at 31 December 2020
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PROXY FORM

I/WE __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(include email address and mobile number)

a member of NATION MEDIA GROUP PLC hereby appoint

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of  __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(include email address and mobile number)

(delete below text as appropriate if The Chairman of the Meeting is not the alternate proxy)

or in his/her place THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my/our proxy and/or representative 

to vote at his/her discretion for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting to be held  on Friday, 25 June 2021 and at every 
adjournment thereof 

AS WITNESS my/our hand(s)  this  ______________________________________ day of ____________________________________  2021.

USUAL SIGNATURES (S) 

___________________________________________________________	  ___________________________________________________________

Please clearly mark the box below to instruct your proxy how to vote 

RESOLUTION  FOR   AGAINST  ABSTAIN 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, and the 

Chairman’s, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.

     

2.	 To confirm that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continue in office as the Company’s 
Auditors in accordance with section 721(2) of the Kenyan Companies Act 2015 and 
to authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

3.	 To elect and re-elect Directors:
a.	 Mr. Dennis Aluanga retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 of the 

Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for  
re-election.

b.	 Mr. Stephen Dunbar-Johnson retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 
of the Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-election.

c.	 Mr. Louis Otieno retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for  
re-election.

d.	 In accordance with the provisions of section 769 of the Companies Act 2015, 
the following Directors, being members of the Board Audit and Risk Committee 
be elected individually to continue serving as members of the Committee:   
i.  Mr Leonard Mususa 
ii. Mr Anwar Poonawala 
iii.Mr Al-Noor Ramji

     

4.	 To receive, consider and if thought fit approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
and the remuneration paid to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 
to authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors.
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Please clearly mark the box below to instruct your proxy how to vote 

RESOLUTION  FOR   AGAINST  ABSTAIN 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, and the 

Chairman’s, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.

     

2.	 To confirm that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continue in office as the Company’s 
Auditors in accordance with section 721(2) of the Kenyan Companies Act 2015 and 
to authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

3.	 To elect and re-elect Directors:
a.	 Mr. Dennis Aluanga retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 of the 

Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for  
re-election.

b.	 Mr. Stephen Dunbar-Johnson retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 
of the Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-election.

c.	 Mr. Louis Otieno retires by rotation in accordance with Article 101 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for  
re-election.

d.	 In accordance with the provisions of section 769 of the Companies Act 2015, 
the following Directors, being members of the Board Audit and Risk Committee 
be elected individually to continue serving as members of the Committee:   
i.  Mr Leonard Mususa 
ii. Mr Anwar Poonawala 
iii.Mr Al-Noor Ramji

     

4.	 To receive, consider and if thought fit approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
and the remuneration paid to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 
to authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors.

 SPECIAL BUSINESS
5.	 THAT the following directors who have reached the age of 70 years to continue to 

serve as directors of the Company: 

a.	 “That Dr. Wilfred D. Kiboro, a director who retires in accordance with Article 101 
of the Company’s Articles of Association and who is over the age of 70 years, 
shall notwithstanding that fact, be re-elected as a director of the Company for a 
period of one year.”

b.	 “That Prof. Lee Huebner, a director who retires in accordance with Article 101 
of the Company’s Articles of Association and who is over the age of 70 years, 
shall not withstanding that fact, be re-elected as a director of the Company for a 
period of one year.”

c.	 “That Mr. Anwar Poonawala, a director who retires in accordance with Article 
101 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who is over the age of 
70 years, shall not withstanding that fact, be re-elected as a director of the 
Company for a period of one year.”

d.	 “That Mr. Francis O. Okello, a director who retires in accordance with Article 101 
of the Company’s Articles of Association and who is over the age of 70 years, 
shall not withstanding that fact, be re-elected as a director of the Company for a 
period of one year.”

6.	 “THAT a new article to be numbered as Article 13A is inserted into the Company’s 
Articles of Association immediately following the current Article 13 as follows:13A. 
The Company may acquire its own shares in accordance with Part XVI of the 
Companies Act, 2015.”

 

Amendment of Articles 
7.	 “THAT a new article to be numbered as Article 68A is inserted into the Company’s 

Articles of Association immediately following the current Article 68 as follows:68A(i) 
The Board may, whenever it thinks fit: convene a shareholders’ meeting entirely 
by electronic communication; or provide for one or more shareholders, or proxies 
for shareholders to participate by electronic communication in all or part of 
a shareholders meeting that is being held in person, as long as the electronic 
communication employed ordinarily enables all persons participating in that meeting 
to communicate concurrently with each other without an intermediary, and to 
participate reasonably effectively in the meeting.68A(ii) If shareholders participation 
in a meeting is by electronic communication, as contemplated in Article 68A(i) the 
notice of that meeting must inform shareholders of the availability of that form of 
participation, and provide any necessary information to enable shareholders or their 
proxies to access the available medium or means of electronic communication; 
and access to the medium or means of electronic communication is at the expense 
of the shareholder or proxy, except to the extent that the company determines 
otherwise.

8.	 “THAT, in accordance with Section 458 of the Companies Act, 2015, the Company 
be and is hereby authorised to make market purchases of paid-up and issued 
ordinary shares of KES 2.50 each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) 
in connection with a buyback for Ordinary Shares on the terms and conditions set 
out in the Circular to the Company’s shareholders dated 31 May 2021 (the “Buyback”) 
and which circular was made available to the shareholders together with the notice 
for the annual general meeting (and is also available on the Company’s website), 
provided that:

a.	 the maximum number of Ordinary Shares that may be purchased pursuant to 
the terms of this resolution is 20,739,652 Ordinary Shares;

b.	 the maximum price (exclusive of any expenses) that may be paid for any 
Ordinary Share shall be KES 25 as recommended by the Board; 

c.	 the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) that may be paid for any Ordinary 
Share shall be KES 2.50 being the nominal value of the shares; and

d.	 this authority shall expire at the end of 18 months from the date of the annual 
general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2021, unless previously 
varied, revoked or renewed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2015”.

     

9.	 “THAT, in accordance with section 329 of the Companies Act 2015 the directors of 
the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised to re-allot such Ordinary 
Shares as may be purchased by the Company pursuant to the Buyback provided that 
this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire no 
later than five years from the effective date of these resolutions.”

     

Notes 
1.	 Proxy Forms can be emailed to NMGPAGM@image.co.ke  or delivered to the physical offices of the Company or the Company’s Registrar at the 		

	 following address: 

	 Image Registrars Limited,  

	 5th Floor Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza),  

	 P.O. Box 9287 – 00100 GPO 

	 Loita Street,  

	 Nairobi 

2.	 Proxy Forms must reach the registered office of the Company or the Company’s Registrar no later than 3.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021. 

3. 	 Proxy Forms must be sent/scanned with a copy of the ID of the Shareholder and the appointed Proxy.
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TAARIFA KUHUSU MKUTANO MKUU 
WA KILA MWAKA

FOMU YA MSHIRIKA

MIMI/SISI _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

wa _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(jumuisha anwani ya barua pepe na nambari ya simu ya mkononi)

mwanachama wa SHIRIKA LA NATION MEDIA GROUP ninamteua

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

wa _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(jumuisha anwani ya barua pepe na nambari ya simu ya mkononi)

(futa matini yaliyo hapo chini ifaavyo ikiwa Mwenyekiti wa Mkutano sio mshirika mbadala)

au kwa niaba yake MWENYEKITI WA MKUTANO kama mshirika wangu/wetu na/au mwakilishi 

kupiga kura kwa siri yake mwenyewe kwa ajili yangu/yetu na kwa niaba yangu/yetu katika Mkutano Mkuu wa Kila Mwaka utakaofanyika Ijumaa, 
tarehe 25 Juni 2021 na kila uhairishaji wake utakaotokea 

KAMA SHAHIDI kidole/vidole changu/vyetu siku hii ya  ___________________________________ ya _____________________________________  2021.

SAINI ZA KAWAIDA 

_______________________________________________                          ___________________________________________________

Tafadhali tia alama kwenye kisanduku kilicho hapa chini ili kuelekeza mshirika wako jinsi ya kupiga kura 

UAMUZI  KUUNGA MKONO   KUPINGA  KUTOSHIRIKI 

 SHUGHULI YA KAWAIDA
1.	 Kupokea taarifa za kifedha za mwaka uliokamilika tarehe 31 Disemba 2020, na ripoti za 

Mwenyekiti, Wakurugenzi Watendaji na Wakaguzi.

     

2.	 Kuthibitisha kwamba kampuni ya PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP itaendelea kuhudumu 
kama Mkaguzi wa Kampuni kwa mujibu wa kifungu cha 721(2) cha Sheria ya Kampuni ya 
Kenya 2015 na kuidhinisha wakurugenzi kusuluhisha mshahara wa Wakaguzi.

3.	 Kuchagua na kuchagua tena Wakurugenzi:
a.	 Bw. Dennis Aluanga, anastaafu kwa mzunguko kwa mujibu wa Ibara ya 101 ya 

Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na kwa kuwa anastahiki, amejitosa ulingoni ili 
kuchaguliwa tena.

b.	 Bw. Stephen Dunbar-Johnson, anastaafu kwa mzunguko kwa mujibu wa Ibara ya 
101 ya Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na kwa kuwa anastahiki, amejitosa ulingoni ili 
kuchaguliwa tena.

c.	 Bw. Louis Otieno, anastaafu kwa mzunguko kwa mujibu wa Ibara ya 101 ya Taarifa 
ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na kwa kuwa anastahiki, amejitosa ulingoni ili kuchaguliwa 
tena.

d.	 Kwa mujibu wa kanuni za sehemu ya 769 za Sheria ya Kampuni ya 2015, 
Wakurugenzi Watendaji wafuatao, kwa kuwa wanachama wa Kamati ya Bodi ya 
Ukaguzi na Hatari wachaguliwe kila mmoja kibinafsi ili waendelee kuhudumu kama 
wanachama wa Kamati hiyo:  
i. Bw. Leonard Mususa 
ii. Bw. Anwar Poonawala 
iii.Bw. Al-Noor Ramji
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4.	 Kupokea, kuzingatia na ikifikiri kuwa ni sawa, iidhinishe Ripoti ya Mshahara wa 
Wakurugenzi na mshahara uliolipwa kwa Wakurugenzi kwa mwaka uliokamilika tarehe 31 
Disemba 2020 na kuidhinisha wakurugenzi kurekebisha mshahara wa Wakurugenzi Wasio 
Watendaji.

 SHUGHULI MAALUM
5.	 KWAMBA wakurugenzi wafuatao ambao wamefikisha umri wa miaka 70 waendelee 

kuhudumu kama wakurugenzi wa Kampuni: 
a.	 “Kwamba Dkt. Wilfed D. Kiboro, mkurugenzi ambaye anastaafu kwa mujibu wa Ibara 

ya 101 ya  Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na ambaye amepitisha umri wa miaka 70, 
licha ya ukweli huo, achaguliwe tena kama mkurugenzi wa Kampuni kwa kipindi cha 
mwaka mmoja.”

b.	 “Kwamba Prof. Lee Huebner, mkurugenzi ambaye anastaafu kwa mujibu wa Ibara 
ya 101 ya Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na ambaye amepitisha umri wa miaka 70, 
licha ya ukweli huo, achaguliwe tena kama mkurugenzi wa Kampuni kwa kipindi cha 
mwaka mmoja.”

c.	 “Kwamba Bw. Anwar Poonawala, mkurugenzi ambaye anastaafu kwa mujibu wa 
Ibara ya 101 ya  Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na ambaye amepitisha umri wa 
miaka 70, licha ya ukweli huo, achaguliwe tena kama mkurugenzi wa Kampuni kwa 
kipindi cha mwaka mmoja.”

d.	 “Kwamba Bw. Francis. Okello, mkurugenzi ambaye anastaafu kwa mujibu wa Ibara 
ya 101 ya  Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni na ambaye amepitisha umri wa miaka 70, 
licha ya ukweli huo, achaguliwe tena kama mkurugenzi wa Kampuni kwa kipindi cha 
mwaka mmoja.”

6.	 “KWAMBA kifungu kipya kitakachopewa nambari kama Kifungu cha 13A kijumuishwe 
katika Vifungu vya Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni mara moja chini ya Kifungu cha sasa 
cha 13 ifuatavyo:

13A. Kampuni inaweza kununua hisa zake zenyewe kwa mujibu wa Sehemu ya XVI ya 
Sheria ya Kampuni, 2015.”

     

Marekebisho kwenye Vifungu 
7.	 “KWAMBA kifungu kipya kitakachopewa nambari kama Kifungu cha 68A kijumuishwe 

katika Vifungu vya Taarifa ya Ushirika ya Kampuni mara moja chini ya Kifungu cha sasa 
cha 68 ifuatavyo:68A(i) Bodi inaweza, kila inapofikiria kuwa ni vyema:kuitisha mkutano 
wa wenye hisa ambao utafanyika kupitia mawasiliano ya kieletroniki kikamilifu au kutoa 
nafasi kwa mwenye hisa mmoja au zaidi, au washirika wa wenye hisa kushiriki kupitia 
njia ya mawasiliano ya kielektroniki katika mikutano yote au baadhi ya mikutano ya 
wenye hisa ambayo inafanywa ana kwa ana, alimradi njia ya mawasiliano ya kieletroniki 
inayotumika inawawezesha watu wote wanaoshiriki katika mkutano huo kuwasiliana kwa 
njia sambamba bila mtu wa kati, na kushiriki kwa ufanisi katika mkutano huo. 
 
68(ii) Ikiwa wenye hisa watashiriki katika mkutano kupitia mawasiliano ya kielektroniki, 
kama ilivyoangaziwa katika Kifungu cha 68(i) taarifa ya mkutano huo lazima iwajulishe 
wenye hisa kuhusu upatikanaji wa njia hiyo ya kushiriki na kutoa taarifa zozote 
zinazohitajika ili kuwezesha wenye hisa au washirika wao kufikia chombo au njia 
inayopatikana ya mawasiliano ya kielektroniki; na  
 
gharama ya kufikia chombo au njia ya mawasiliano ya kielektroniki zinalipwa na mwenye 
hisa au mshirika wake, isipokuwa ikiwa kampuni itabaini vinginevyo.

     

8.	 “KWAMBA, kwa mujibu wwa Sehemu ya 458 ya Sheria ya Kampuni ya 2015, Kampuni 
ipewe idhini na hivyo imeidhinishwa kufanya ununuzi wa hisa za kawaida zilizolipiwa na 
zilizotolewa za KES 2.50 kwa kila hisa kwenye mtaji wa Kampuni (“Hisa za Kawaida”) 
kuhusiana na kampuni kununua hisa zake yaani Hisa za Kawaida kulingana na sheria 
na masharti yaliyobainishwa kwenye Taarifa iliyotumwa kwa wenye hisa wa Kampuni 
mnamo tarehe 31 Mei 2021 (“Kampuni kununua hisa zake”) na taarifa hiyo ilitolewa 
pamoja na taarifa ya mkutano mkuu wa kila mwaka (na inapatikana kwenye tovuti ya 
Kampuni), ilisema kwamba:

a.	 idadi ya juu zaidi ya Hisa za Kawaida zinazoweza kununuliwa kwa mujibu wa sheria 
za azimio hili ni Hisa 20,739,652 za Kawaida;

b.	 bei ya juu zaidi (bila kujumuisha gharama zozote) inayoweza kulipwa kwa Hisa 
yoyote ya Kawaida itakuwa KES  25 kama ilivyopendekezwa na Bodi; 

c.	 bei ya chini zaidi (bila kujumuisha gharama zozote) inayoweza kulipwa kwa ajili ya 
Hisa yoyote ya Kawaida itakuwa KES 2.50 hii ikiwa ni thamani ya sarafu ya hisa hizo; 
na

d.	 muda wa mamlaka hii utaisha mwishoni wa miezi 18 kuanzia tarehe ambapo 
mkutano mkuu wa mwaka wa Kampuni utakaofanyika tarehe 25 Juni 2021, 
isipokuwa kama ilibadilishwa, kubatilishwa au kufanywa upya awali kwa mujibu wa 
kanuni za Sheria ya Kampuni 2015.”

     

9.	 “KWAMBA, kwa mujibu wa sehemu ya 329 ya Sheria za Kampuni 2015, wakurugenzi wa 
Kampuni kwa ujumla na bila masharti yoyote, waruhusiwe kugawa upya Hisa za Kawaida 
ambazo huenda zimenunuliwa na Kampuni kwa mujibu wa kanuni hiyo ya Kampuni 
kununua hisa zake alimradi mamlaka hii, isipokuwa iwe imewekwa upya, kubadilishwa au 
kubatilisha na Kampuni, itaisha muda sio baada ya miaka mitano tangu tarehe ya kuanza 
kutekelezwa kwa maazimio haya.”

     

Vidokezo  
1.Fomu za Washirika zinaweza kutumwa kwa NMGPAGM@image.co.ke au kuwasilishwa katika ofisi za Kampuni au Msajili wa Kampuni katika anwaniifuatayo:

	 Image Registrars Limited,  

	 5th Floor Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza),  

	 P.O. Box 9287 – 00100 GPO 

	 Loita Street,  

	 Nairobi 

2. 	 Fomu za Washirika ni sharti zifike katika ofisi iliyosajiliwa ya Kampuni au Msajili wa Kampuni mwisho saa 9 jioni siku ya Jumatano, tarehe 23 Juni 2021.

3.	 Fomu za Washirika ni sharti zitumwe/zichanganuliwe pamoja na nakala ya Kitambulisho cha Mwenye hisa na Mshirika aliyeteuliwa.
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